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The Ferdinand W. Lafrentz House is situated only a few blocks from downtown
Cheyenne, in a neighborhood that is in the process of transition from residential
to commercial and governmental. The house is approximately midway between 20th
and 21st Streets and set back forty feet from Warren Avenue which it fronts.
North of the Lafrentz House is the General Motors Acceptance Corporation Building
and an adjoining parking lot, and south of the house is an alley and a small,
two-story stucco home. Opposite the house, across Warren Street, is a parking lot,
and in the rear of the house is a small yard, a parking lot and a frame garage.
Property separation on the north and south edges is achieved by vegetation
including 1ilac bushes and deciduous trees, and by a section of cedar plank fence
between the garage and house. The entire 1ot upon which the Lafrentz House is
situated measures 66 x 122 feet, and the building itself measures 47 x 37 feet.

According to available documentation, it appears that the Lafrentz House was

built in the early 1880's. The gray-painted, two-story cottage is eclectic in
style, but borrows principally from the Queen Anne. The latter is demonstrated

by the changes in siding material from clapboard to square shingles to scalloped
shingles and by the steep gable roof that is covered with black, composition
shingles. The quasi-mansard roof along a portion of the east and north ele-
vations is borrowed from the Second Empire Style. Although a few exterior changes
have been made in the house, such as the addition of an entrance vestibule, they
are not major changes affecting the integrity of the structure.

Principal features of the main, or west, elevation of the house are two gable
dormers and a frame veranda with ornamental balustrade, columns and brackets.
Fenestration is prominent in the house, particularly along the west face which
contains seven, elongated, double-hung windows 75" x 27" in size. Three of the
seven are set within a large bay window that is capped by standing seam, metal
fascia. Stained glass is used in the entrance vestibule.

The south face contains a dormer wall, four elongated windows the same size as
those in the west elevation, and one smaller, rectangular window. The first Tevel
of the east face contains three elongated windows, a smaller rectangular window,
and an incongruous but interesting triangular window, while the mansard roof con-
tains three shallow dormers. Adjacent a single door, rear entrance is a face
brick chimney with three sides exposed. This chimney is newer than the original,
corbelled, common brick chimney which penetrates the ridge. The north face of the
house is dominated by a gable wall containing no windows. Just east of the gable
wall is a rectangular window, smaller in size than the original opening of which
it is part and which in size matches the other elongated windows.

Within the Lafrentz House are three offices. On the main floor, south, is the
office of McInerney Company Realty consisting of a 1iving room, dining room,
kitchen and bath. A fireplace in the 1iving room is no longer functional. The
north portion of the main floor consists of a parlor, sitting room, kitchen,
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The Ferdinand W. Lafrentz House, which has not changed substantially since it was
built in the 1880's, is representative of the type of frame cottage that was built
in Cheyenne during the last quarter of the nineteenth century. During this brief
but expansive period, Cheyenne was reputed to be the richest city of its size in
the world. It was the headquarters of Wyoming's Tivestock industry which reached
its apogee midway through the decade but declined following the severe winter of
1886-87. The men who were members of the Wyoming Stock Growers Association and
the Cheyenne Club at that time represented some of the most prominent families in
America and Europe.

The Lafrentz property relates directly or indirectly to at least three people of
importance on the local Tevel, two of whom departed Cheyenne to rise to positions
of national importance. One was Lloyd Fredendall, son of Army Captain Ira L.
Fredendall. The latter owned the Lafrentz property in the year 1883 according to
the records of the Laramie County Clerk's Office. Lloyd Fredendall entered the
military and graduated from the United States Military Academy at West Point. He
then advanced through army grades to the position of Lieutenant-General. In
November, 1942 he was with units landing at Oran, North Africa and in June, 1943
he became Deputy Commander of the Second Army.

Ferdinand W. Lafrentz owned the house named for him during the years 1884-87.
According to Historian John Rolfe Burroughs, Lafrentz came to Wyoming from Chicago
to work for Alexander Swan as a bookkeeper for the Swan Land and Cattle Company, a
Tivestock operation which at one time was among the largest in the nation. In 1888
Lafrentz served as a Laramie County Democratic Representative to the Tenth Wyoming
Territorial Legislature. In that year he introduced the first formal appeal to
memorialize the United States Congress for Wyoming statehood. Later Lafrentz left
Cheyenne to pursue his fortune in New York City, and became Chairman of the Board
of the American Surety Company of New York. He authored a book of poetry about
Tife in the West entitled Cowboy Stuff and according to one source, sold the first
ten copies for $5,000 each and gave the money to Lincoln Memorial University in
Cumberland Gap, Tennessee for the construction of a dormitory.

A third prominent person associated with the Lafrentz property was Robert N. .
LaFontaine, a Cheyenne contractor who constructed a portion of Fort D. A. Russell.*

*The site is today Warren Air Force Base, a National Historic Landmark.
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corridor and closet, all of which are used as the office of Cheyenne Memorial
Gardens. The second floor is the home of another private entity named Psycho-
logical Services. In addition to two main rooms used for office space on the
second level are an L-shaped hallway, a bathroom, and a long, narrow storage

room with a pitched ceiling faced with car siding and containing dormer windows
facing west. Below ground level is a brick-walled, partial basement accessible
from the rear of the building and containing a coal furnace converted to gas.
Plaster walls painted white, off-white or light blue, are seen throughout the
house. Noteworthy interior features include: ornamental, milled, softwood window
and door casings and baseborads; functional iron radiators; and ornamental pressed
and solid brass and brass-plate door hardware. Surprisingly, few interior changes
have been made in the Lafrentz House in order to accommodate the three commercial
enterprises established in it.

The garage is located east, or behind, the Lafrentz House. Although it is comple-
mentary to the house in design, it is not old enough to be included in the National
Register. Measuring 20' x 23' the white-painted garage is a rectangular, clapboard-
sided structure capped by a gable roof that has exposed rafters and is covered with
wooden shingles. Single, overhead doors on the south elevation provide vehicle
access to two garage bays. Other building openings include a single door entrance
on the west side and four rectangular windows, two on the north side and one each
on the east and west sides. Each window contains two Tites divided by a single
mullion.
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LaFontaine, who bought the Lafrentz House in 1909, was active in local politics,
serving as a member of the Cheyenne City Council in 1908-09. In the latter year

he was elected to the House of Representatives of the Tenth Wyoming State Legislature.
In 1912 he was made chairman of the Republican Central Committee in Laramie County,
serving in that post for two years. In 1914 he became the first man to serve as
Mayor of Cheyenne under the commission form of government, and served a second term
in that office.

There are gaps in the history of the Lafrentz House, just as there are gaps in the
history of Cheyenne. This particular building, Tike so many others in the city,
needs further research in order to not only document its various uses and the 1lives
of its occupants, but also to help fill in the pieces of a mosaic of local history
that is complex, and enriched by ties to history outside the city limits. Perhaps
the architecture of Cheyenne, of which so much remains from one of the most exuberant
periods ?f the city's history, can serve as the vehicle by which the town's past will
be revealed.

In conclusion, the Lafrentz House, Tocated in one of the oldest neighborhoods in
Cheyenne, is a well-preserved survivor of early-day Cheyenne residential archi-
tecture. The house, or the property on which it stands, is associated directly

or indirectly with three distinguished Cheyenne citizens, and is presently being
preserved by its owner, Alvin L. Wiedersphan. Both its architectural and historical
characteristics combine to qualify the Lafrentz House for enrollment in the National
Register of Historic Places.




Form No. 10-300a
(Kev. 10-74)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

CONTINUATION SHEET | afrentz House  !TEM NUMBER g PAGE 1

ADDENDUM: ITEM 9

BOOKS:

Bartlett, I. S, History of Wyoming (Vol. II)., Chicago: The S. J. Clarke Publishing
Company, 1918.

Burroughs, John Rolfe. Guardian of the Grasslands. Cheyenne: Pioneer Printing and
Stationery Company, 1971.

Heitman, Francis B, Historical Register and Dictionary of the United States Army.
Washington: Government Printing Office, 1903,

Institution for Research in Biography. World Biography (Fourth Edition of the
Biographical Encyclopedia of the World). New York: no publisher or date of
pubTication Tisted, although company was incorporated in 1934,

Laramie County Chapter, Wyoming State Historical Society. Early Cheyenne Homes.
Cheyenne: Pioneer Printing and Stationery Company, 1975.

Larson, T. A. History of Wyoming. Lincoln: University of Nebraska Press, 1965,

Mothershead, Harmon Ross. The Swan Land and Cattle Company, Ltd., Norman:
University of Oklahoma Press, 1971,

Trenholm, Virginia Cole (editor). Wyoming Blue Book (3 Vols.). Cheyenne: Pioneer
Printing and Stationery Company, 1974.

Willfams, Mary H. (compiler). United States Army in World War II (Vol. 4),
Special Studies: Chronology 1941-1945,  Washington, D. C.: Office of the
Chief of Military History, Department of the Army, 1960.

MISCELLANEQUS :

Book II, Block 151-275, City of Cheyenne, Office of the Laramie County Clerk,
Cheyenne, Wyoming.

Vertical Files, "Block 263". Office of the Laramie County Assessor, Cheyenne,
Wyoming.




